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Mission & Values 

Who We Are 

The Centre for Christian Studies is a national theological 

school for women and men preparing for ministry in the 

Anglican and United Churches of Canada. Our roots go back 

to the 1890s when the Anglican, Methodist, and Presbyterian 

churches founded schools in Toronto for women to study 

theology and be trained as deaconesses and missionaries. 

CCS continues to train and support leaders who emerge from 

the “edges” to engage in ministry that lives in the world, 

works with the world and transforms for wholeness.  

Our Mission 

“Educating leaders for justice, compassion and transformation.”  

Our Core Values 

1. Acting in faith. 

 Approaching theology from a position of 

inquiry and struggle, striving to extend 

our boundaries outward in dialogue 

with other denominations, religious 

traditions, and spiritual expressions; 

 Nurtured by the Anglican and United 

Church traditions; 

 Centred in an understanding of the God 

of grace, love and reconciliation, for us 

and all of creation, as set out in 

Scripture; 

 Finding liberation and life in Jesus’ 

ministry of justice and healing; 

 Empowered by the Spirit of the risen 

Christ and guided by Wisdom. 

2. Living a theology of justice. 

 Inspired by Jesus’ reversal of power, his 

example of service in washing the feet 

of his disciples, and his rejection of the 

values of empire; 

 Believing that justice includes economic, 

social, and ecological concerns; 

 Founding our work and relationships in 

values of mutuality, equality, and 

respect; 
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 Acknowledging our churches’ culpability 

in unjust practices and seeking to 

redress them; 

 Responding to the prophetic and gospel 

call to share resources, to restore what 

was taken, to reconcile what was 

divided, to embrace those who have 

been excluded.  

 3. Educating through action/reflection, 

integration, transformation. 

 Believing that education is most 

effective when it engages the whole 

person, when we are co-learners and 

co-teachers, and when it is relevant and 

collaborative; 

 Valuing education that is self-directed 

and relational, affirming and evaluative; 

 Dedicated to forming learning 

communities as the foundation to our 

approach to education. 

4. Grounding ourselves in sacred 

community. 

 Fostering community-building that 

challenges individualism and egotism; 

 Intentional about creating life-giving 

communities of learning as a context for 

growth, shared wisdom, hospitality, 

support, and accountability; 

 Seeking to create communities that are 

inclusive, respectful, and diverse. 

5. Living out of a spirit of abundance and 

gratitude.  

 Our beginning was made possible by 

gifts from major donors who believed in 

the founding vision of our school; 

 Our present and future is made possible 

by donations from graduates and 

Friends, and by grants from institutional 

supporters; 

 We rely for our governance and 

program on a company of volunteers 

who give and give back to CCS as 

members of our Central Council, 

Committees, and working groups; as 

learning facilitators, mentors, and 

supporters for our students. 

6. Participating in a larger story. 

 Nurtured by a worldwide, ecumenical 

network of deacons and diaconal 

ministers from many traditions; 

 Sharing values and vision of faith, 

justice, education, service and 

community with many movements, 

institutions, and communities; 

 Learning through active involvement in 

movements for justice; 

 Fostering partnerships of solidarity for 

common cause. 
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Principal’s Report – Maylanne Maybee 

 

The image that comes to mind for CCS in 

2014 is a year of “living in between” - doing 

business as usual on the surface, while 

underneath feeling the beginning of seismic 

shifts that will profoundly affect our future.  

This in-between space is where diaconal 

ministers and deacons typically exercise 

their ministry, anticipating and midwifing 

not just change, but transformative change. 

Educating for Transformation.  Living in the 

space in between is about carrying out our 

core business:  educating students for 

diaconal ministry.  In March 2014, seven 

students graduated with a Diploma in 

Diaconal Ministries, seven were awarded a 

Certificate of Completion for the Anglican 

program, Ministering by Word and Example, 

and Eric Tusz-King and Lynda Gow were 

honoured as Companions of the Centre.  

Fourteen students completed the Education 

and Worship Theme Year, and eight took a 

Reflection Year.  In the fall, 21 students 

registered for the Pastoral Care Year (an 

intake of ten new students), nine elected to 

take a Reflection Year, and two began their 

Integrating Year.  A total of twenty students 

signed up for one of two Leadership 

Development Modules, co-facilitated by Ted 

Dodd and Kathy Douglas in London, Ontario 

in June, and by Ted and Gwen McAllister in 

Winnipeg in August.   

We experimented with a condensed course 

for Anglicans; opened up the Fall Pastoral 

Care Learning Circle as a continuing 

education opportunity on the theme of Loss 

and Lamentation; led a retreat with Sister 

Debra SSJD at the Sisterhood of St. John the 

Divine in February, and co-sponsored 

Engage Difference!, a six day program on 

intercultural ministry. We offered our 

Second Friday series on Aboriginal issues in 

partnership with the Sandy Saulteaux 

Spiritual Centre which attracted diverse and 

lively audiences, and make excellent 

YouTube viewing.  (Search on YouTube for 

“CCS Second Fridays”) 

In 2014 the Central Council adopted a policy 

on Prior Learning and Assessment 

Recognition (PLAR), a process for reviewing 

the potential equivalency of an applicant’s 

previous experience.  Last year we had four 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLz2GubsEhMFp8Z_Hsh4WL8xSkK3w8HMZg
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLz2GubsEhMFp8Z_Hsh4WL8xSkK3w8HMZg
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applicants – one decided to take the full 

course, two were exempted from one 

learning circle, and 

one decided not to 

take our program.  I 

believe our PLAR 

policy is an important 

discernment tool for 

inquirers, is consistent 

with the Competency 

model that is gaining 

recognition in our 

churches, and 

preserves the high 

value CCS places on 

learning in 

community.    

Administration and 

Staffing. In 2014, we 

changed computer 

service providers, 

computer hardware, 

investment advisors, 

and office 

administrators.  

Meytal Lavy worked as 

Office Administrator 

from December 2013 

to May 2014, and Nicki 

Kirton from May to 

December 2014.  Both 

of them brought 

unique gifts and skills to the role, and both 

were sought out by other employers.  Terry 

Reilly is our interim Office Administrator, 

serving with skill and good grace.  We hope 

the person we hire in 2015 will stay a while 

longer and that we will end the year with 

the same hardware and 

database we started 

with.   

Ann Naylor left us for a 

sabbatical over the 

summer, returning with 

a message of subversive 

Sabbath-keeping, and 

ideas about the place of 

music and image in 

transformation teaching.  

Her attention to detail 

and assistance with the 

audit has been 

invaluable during the 

transition in office 

administration.   

As this goes to press, we 

have just learned from 

Ted Dodd that he plans 

to retire as of August 1, 

2015.  We rejoice with 

him as he begins this 

new adventure, and at 

the same acknowledge 

that this will be a great 

loss to CCS.  We will find 

opportunities to pay 

tribute to him at the 

April graduation 

weekend.  I will deeply miss Ted who has 

been a strong and supportive presence 

since I began as principal in 2011.   
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I am grateful every day that I have the 

opportunity of working at CCS with Ted, 

Ann, Scott, and Lori – they are smart, 

competent, funny, dedicated, wise, 

respectful, and only occasionally irritating! 

Governance.  One of the joys of my job as 

Principal is working with a really lively, 

skilled and involved 

Central Council.  I felt 

very fortunate when I 

started at CCS that one 

of my “bosses” was Jim 

Boyles, our Anglican co-

chair, with whom I had 

worked at General Synod 

when he was General 

Secretary.  He was 

always calm and clear 

headed, and I will sorely miss him when his 

term ends in February.  I will also miss Patty 

Evans’ organized attention to detail as chair 

of the Planning and Governance 

Committee, and Vicki McPhee’s spirited 

support as Secretary.  The good news is that 

Penny Cummine, a deacon based in Kenora, 

will be our Anglican co-chair, Patty Evans 

will stay on as Secretary, and we have 

recruited Del Sexsmith to chair the 

Communications and Promotion 

Committee.  A special word of thanks is due 

to Maureen McCartney who has been the 

enthusiastic and tireless convenor of the 

Volunteer Recruitment Working Group.  

Thanks to her diligent and persuasive style 

we are surrounded by outstanding 

volunteers. 

Meeting our Friends and supporters.  Our 

development coordinator, Lori Stewart and 

I visited generous Friends and supporters of 

CCS throughout 2014 – in Ontario, Alberta, 

and B.C.  It is incredibly rewarding to meet 

graduates who continue in their ministries 

of pastoral care and social ministry and 

education with feistiness, backbone, and 

integrity.  I am impressed 

by those who generously 

support our school and 

follow our life, regardless of 

whether or not they 

studied here.  CCS seems to 

represent something 

important about being part 

of a community that values 

justice, compassion, and 

transformation. 

Relating to our Churches.  Deliberations 

with The United Church of Canada about 

the future of theological education were a 

major preoccupation in 2014.  In early 

December, the General Council Executive 

Committee approved a recommendation to 

adopt a model of theological education that 

would use competencies rather than 

degrees or diplomas as a measuring stick for 

assessing readiness for ordered ministry.  

The implications of this change to a 

Competency-based approach, as well as the 

decisions to be made in 2015 about One 

Order of Ministry and new Candidacy 

Pathways will have important implications 

for CCS.  Staying at the table is crucial in this 

time of transition.   

CCS seems to represent 

something important 

about being part of a 

community that values 

justice, compassion, 

and transformation. 
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Anglicans are also going in this direction: 

both the Anglican Church of Canada and the 

Association of Episcopal Deacons are 

developing diaconal competencies.  

Competencies were also on the agenda of a 

gathering of deaconesses and Diaconal 

Ministers of the Evangelical Lutheran 

Church in Canada where I was a guest in 

Edmonton this July.  I always marvel at how 

much we diaconal types have in common, in 

spite of important differences among us.   

Staffing Scenarios.  As part of our strategic 

plan, the Central Council recognized that we 

have been understaffed in the program 

area for some time.  The approach we 

decided on was to contract out extra work 

for the short term; to examine our needs 

for a third program staff position; and to 

seek out a way to fund that position. 

Contracting with competent educators to 

mark assignments and co-facilitate 

Leadership Development Modules 2014 

really helped to lighten the load for the 

program staff team and enrich the 

perspective of our students.  We are 

grateful to Walter Deller, Kathy Platt, 

Catherine Macdonald, Kathy Douglas, and 

Gwen McAllister for serving as our “adjunct 

faculty” in the past year. 

The Program Committee and Staff Team 

considered whether a third program staff 

person should have a denominational 

identity or an academic specialty, but 

concluded that we need someone who will 

strengthen our overall staffing capacity, 

who fits within CCS’s value framework, and 

would work in team with the Program Staff.  

For this year, I anticipate that in addition to 

filling the vacancy left by Ted’s retirement, 

we will need additional staffing to (1) 

resource an evaluation of our curriculum; 

and (2) initiate a student recruitment 

campaign with the goal of increasing our 

full time student enrolment and building 

“buy in” from Anglican bishops, dioceses, 

and diaconal candidates.   

What to expect in 2015.  The main 

decisions we face in 2015 are when and 

how to hire a third program staff person, 

and what kind of financial campaign will be 

the best way forward to fund that position. I 

am proposing the idea of “Building Bridges 

to the Future” as an overarching theme for 

implementing our Strategic Plan over the 

next two to three years.  In general terms, 

these bridges include:   

 Increasing our staff capacity 

 Enlarging our endowment fund 

 Growing our student enrolment  

 Exploring new forms and directions for 

our program 

 Succession planning.   

Bridges are about in between spaces – a 

good image for in between times.  It’s 

exciting to build bridges and exciting as well 

as daunting, to cross them.  It’s a “journey 

just begun” and I look forward to it.   
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Central Council Report – Co-Chairs Carolynne Bouey-

Shank and Jim Boyles 

 

Reflect. Act. Be Transformed 

With the Strategic Plan and a new Mission 

Statement in place our Central Council is 

checking off those plans begun, completed, 

to be revised and plans yet to be initiated. 

Jim and I appreciate the continued caring 

and tenaciousness of our partners in the 

ministry of Central Council which includes 

two student representatives, chairs of the 

Committees, a representative at large of the 

Anglican Church and a representative at 

large of the United Church and the support 

of the recording secretary, CCS staff 

representative Lori Stewart and the 

guidance and forward thinking of our 

Principal Maylanne Maybee. There are also 

all the members of committees and 

subcommittees who do their part to live out 

the governing tasks. We also have great 

support from the Program Staff: Ann Naylor 

and Ted Dodd, Development Coordinator: 

Lori Stewart, Information and Program 

Administrator: Scott Douglas and 

Administrative Assistants: Meytal Lavy 

(early December 2013 and on) and then 

later Nicki Kirton to December 2014). 

At our upcoming Face to Face meeting in 

April we look forward to our time with the 

students, staff and elders of the Sandy-

Sauteaux Centre.  This is the initiative of our 

Partnerships Task Group. There is a crucial 

need for growing partnerships with our 

United and Anglican Church theological 

schools and other denominations. With the 

financial restrictions of the United Church 

we mourn the loss this year of two United 

Church Learning Centres: Calling Lakes and 

Naramata Centre. 

We are having several changes to our 

membership of Central Council. We are 

heartened that we have new people to be 

nominated at the AGM: Del Sexsmith as 

new chair and new members for the 

Communications and Promotions 

Committee, Patty Evans as new Recording 

Secretary and new Co-chair Penny 

Cummine.  

We are in gratitude to those of Central 

Council who have offered their services: 

Helen Reed as Chair of Communications and 
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Development, Vicki McPhee as Recording 

Secretary, Patty Evans as Chair of Planning 

and Governance and Jim Boyles as Co-Chair. 

“As I have said at the last few Central 

Council meetings, it has 

been a rich and delightful 

time over the last 4 years 

with you Jim as Co-Chair.  

We have gained from you, 

your wisdom and your 

inner joy of life and 

ministry. Thank you for all 

you have offered over the 

decades in your rich 

relationship with the 

community of CCS and your 

part of always including the 

Anglican Church.”   

With gratitude, Carolynne Bouey Shank 

And from Jim Boyles as in the Profile 

January 2015 Common Threads 

“…The last six years as co-chair, first with 

Tammy Allan and then with Carolynne 

Bouey-Shank have been a delight. I’ve never 

been part of such a happy and cohesive 

board, yet one that has been effective and 

forward looking. The Centre is blessed with 

experienced and caring staff, strong 

financial management, an impressive 

endowment fund and a core program and 

educational approach that maintains the 

strengths I encountered in the 70s, while 

evolving with the times 

and the technology of 

our age.  

"In all, I think I’ve served 

on the Council a total of 

15 years. Through the 

decades the emphasis on 

‘community’ is one of the 

keys, and one of the gifts 

that the Centre offers to 

the churches, and indeed 

to the world. May it 

thrive, and go from strength to strength.” 

With thanks as well to the students, the 

friends of CCS and the donors we 

respectfully submit this report.  

Carolynne Bouey Shank and Jim Boyles 

Reflect. Act. Be Transformed 

 

 

 

CCS Staff Report 

For this year’s Staff Report each of member 

of the staff chose a picture as a jumping off 

point for reflecting on what they have been 

about over the course of the year: 

Through the decades 

the emphasis on 

‘community’ is one of 

the keys, and one of 

the gifts that the 

Centre offers to the 

churches, and indeed 

to the world. 
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Lori Stewart – 

Development Coordinator 

It’s a little known fact that snow 

actually has a purpose.   

It’s a great way to store moisture 

during the winter for slow release 

as the weather gets warmer and 

dryer.  Snow is like the community 

that CCS is connected with: 

churches, women’s groups, 

organizational partners, students, 

graduates, volunteers (who serve on 

standing committees, Central Council, local 

committees, and as learning facilitators and 

diaconal mentors), staff, and God.   It’s all 

around, embracing CCS in the beauty of 

vibrant relationships while shaping and 

sustaining the work of educating leaders for 

justice, compassion, and transformation.  

Snow also makes me pay attention.  I have 

to slow down to shovel or scrape or walk or 

drive, and sometimes I have to stay home.  

Snow won’t be ignored or taken for 

granted.  My job as Development 

Coordinator is about paying attention to 

you, the person with whom we have a 

relationship.  Your ideas, critique, advice, 

interest, and caring are the things that 

energize the work of CCS.  Sometimes 

development is perceived as “asking for 

money” but, in fact, it always starts with 

nurturing a relationship with you.  My job is 

not to grab for a few bucks to meet our 

need.  It is to nurture your love and 

understanding of the work that underlies 

CCS. 

This year I have enjoyed the snow: visiting 

graduates and donors; inviting students and 

volunteers to share their stories; and 

promoting the impact a CCS education can 

have in the world.  It has been a year of 

uncovering the blessings hidden beneath all 

that whiteness.  I am thankful for snow. 

Scott Douglas – Information & 

Program Adminstrator 

This is a colour picker, like you might find in 

any graphics/photo-editing/word-

processing program.  The selected shade of 
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green is apparently called “Rio Grande.”  I 

know it better as hexadecimal code 

#CCCC00.  Or occasionally as R:204, G:204, 

B:0.  A few years ago when Anglican Church 

House graphic designer Saskia Rowley 

helped us create our “Reflect. Act. Be 

Transformed” logo, she chose this green to 

complement the violets, eggplants, and 

dark blues of the text. 

Rio Grande is different from Avocado or 

Lime.  One of the things I try to do, when 

working on the CCS website, putting 

together Common Threads, designing 

posters, editing video, setting up the online 

Moodle platform for students, or even 

when I’m describing the CCS program to 

prospective students as registrar, is use a 

few consistent elements to create a sense 

of continuity from piece to piece.  

Sometimes that means colour, like Rio 

Grande, and sometimes it’s about language 

or tone.  I don’t suppose people notice this, 

but hopefully on an unconscious level, 

when they look at stuff that comes out of 

CCS, they get a sense of “Yeah, this feels like 

CCS.”  Personable but not smarmy, clean 

but not sterile, committed by not self-

important, professional but not corporate, 

subversive but not mean-spirited, faithful 

but curious. 

Over the 6 years I’ve been at CCS – That’s 8 

office administrators, 3 principals, and 4 

development staff-people, if you’re keeping 

score – things have changed.  Our purples 

have shifted from #6F358C to #800080.  As 

CCS evolves, my job is to pay attention to 

the codes and the minute details so that the 

big picture still looks familiar. 

Ann Naylor – Program Staff 

choosing readings; responding to 

assignments; supporting students and 

volunteers in field placements; planning and 

leading learning circles; staffing 

committees; overseeing the audit; 

participating in denominational work; 

developing policy; consulting with 

colleagues; creating resources; analyzing 

and reflecting; collaborating in initiatives 

toward right relationship, toward justice … 

in the constancy of the motion, in the 

apparent chaos of activity, there is a rhythm 

– sustained forward movement fed from the 
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deep,  a slowed pace, a drawing back, 

followed by renewed strength, perspective 

shifting from vision to detail and back again, 

valuing the gift of insight in the tiny droplet 

and in the mighty wave 

the deceptively quiet water along the shore 

beckons to seekers of learning,  to 

discerners of identity and vocation;  each 

step bringing deeper risk and calling forth 

courage, each step bringing deeper 

confidence, greater skill, and new 

knowledge 

watching and listening, accompanying, 

leading, following, celebrating new 

leadership,  bearing witness to 

transformation 

giving thanks for meaningful work, sabbatic 

leave, faithful colleagues, generous 

volunteers and donors, students who turn 

their lives toward the call of the waves, and 

for water – mystery, promise, healing, life… 

Ted Dodd – Program Staff 

In the middle of January, I facilitated the 

Leadership Development Module in 

Peterborough.  At one of the student-led 

sessions, we were asked to draft a vision 

statement for our ministry.  On the back of 

an agenda sheet I scrawled, scribbled and 

scratched these words: 

I hope to develop: 

 leaders with a spirit and vision of 
compassion and justice 

 reflective and thoughtful leaders who 
can also initiate and act 

 self-aware leaders who build 
community 

 positive, affirming leaders who can also 
challenge others and confront issues 

This short exercise reminded me of how 

great it is to be given time to ponder 

prayerfully and to learn experientially.  We 

ask our students (and staff) to think about 

themselves – and beyond themselves.  We 

create a supportive climate where 

they can stretch and grow. 

In the second week, of the LDM we 

gathered for a group photo.  We 

chose to stand together clustered 

around a piece of graffiti art.  A map 

of Canada was pasted to the side of 

an old “Y” building on main street 

Peterborough.  On it were stenciled 

the words: 

Racism, sexism and homophobia are 

not permitted in this area. 
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I am proud to be connected to a school 

where such matters of importance are not 

only discussed and analyzed, but where 

actions of justice and commitment to 

solidarity are encouraged as central 

imperatives of the life of faith. 

Since coming back to the office in Winnipeg, 

my date book has been filled with 

appointments to phone students, and their 

facilitators and mentors who support their 

field placement learning.  I delight in these 

opportunities to name learnings, identify 

strengths and articulate areas for further 

work.  This networking takes me into the 

realities of churches and learning sites 

across the country.  It enables me build 

relationships for my work and develop 

friends for CCS and our dynamic model of 

education. 

 

CCS Student Report – Hubert Den Draak 

Currently I am the only student rep, as 

Morgan Ryder had to resign because of her 

extended 3-year Reflection period. Since I 

am in my Reflection Year as well I am not as 

connected to the students and their issues 

as I would like to be. However I am able to 

compensate for that somewhat via email 

and the closed Facebook "clergy in training" 

group, as well as the occasional phone call. 

The current study body seems to have 

formed well, despite this year's large intake. 

The to-be-expected first-year-anxieties 

were met very well by two exceptional 

chaplains, CCS staff and (after some time) 

the students themselves. 

Technical questions, mostly regarding the 

switch to Moodle, were ably met by Scott 

Douglas who not only provided a demo but 

also took ample time sorting out individual 

glitches and concerns. 

The change in the external markers has 

been well received in particular by the 2nd 
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and 3rd year students. Both markers 

connect well to CCS's philosophy and 

modus operandi, contributing to the 

students' learnings and growth. 

Some students do sense that CCS staff is 

experiencing additional pressure, mostly 

due to the missing admin person at the 

front desk. In itself this is not disruptive to 

the students, but it does cause some 

occasional minor glitches and a general 

sense of restlessness.  

In conclusion, the students are happy and 

adjusting well to the program and its 

challenges, with no issues that need to be 

reported as far as I can tell from my 

relatively "outside position". 

Respectfully submitted, 

Hubert Den Draak, Student Representative 

to Central Council. 

 

 

  

June 2014 LDM in London, August 

2014 LDM in Winnipeg, 2014-2015 

Pastoral Care Year, 2013-2014 

Educational Ministry Year, Anglican 

Ministering by Word & Example course 
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2014 Students 

Educational & Liturgical 
Ministry Year 
(2013-2014) 
Tani Baskett  
Hubert Den Draak 
Anne Ellis 
Carrie Foden 
Dan Leaver 
Lynn McGrath 
Ian McLean 
Patricia McLeod 
Mary Nichol 
Anita Rowland  
Morgan Ryder 
Mona Smart 
Lynn Smith  
Catherine Underhill 
Josh Ward 
 

Integrating Year  
(2013-2014) 
Ellen Baynton-Walker 
Jamie Bradshaw 
Barbara Hansen 
Gwen McAllister 
Jacqueline Samson 
Kelley Warner 
Kristin Wood 
 

Reflection Year 
(2013-2014) 
Brian Elcombe 
Don Evans 
Keith Hall 
Jim Hatt 
Mark Laird 
Tif McNaughton 
Nick Mitchell 
Jackie Van’t Voort 

Pastoral Care Year 
(2014-2015) 
Charmain Bailey Splawnyk 
Tani Baskett  
Tammy Bleue 
Lisa Byer de Wever 
Pat Chabluk 
Don Evans 
Keith Hall 
Melanie Ihmels 
Marion Martin 
Lynn McGrath 
Ian McLean 
Patricia McLeod 
Tiffany McNaughton 
Alison Miculan 
David Puranen 
Mona Smart 
Lynn Smith  
Catherine Underhill 
Josh Ward 
Meghan Witzel 

 
Integrating Year 
(2014-2015) 
Jim Hatt 
Mark Laird 

 
Reflection Year 
(2014-2015) 
Jordan Basso 
Christina Crawford 
Michelle Creedy 
Hubert Den Draak 
Anne Ellis 
Anita Rowland 
Morgan Ryder 
Jackie Van’t Voort 
 

Leadership Development 
Module 2014 
London: 

Lisa Byer de Wever 
Aldo Di Giovanni 
Dawn Hill 
Sandra Maltby-Mills 
Elizabeth McCaffrey 
Alison Miculan 
Joan Scarrow 
Charmain Bailey Splawnyk 
Mary Wright 
Norma Wrightly 

Winnipeg: 
Jordan Basso 
Tammy Bleue 
Melanie Ihmels 
Marion Martin 
Barbara McGill 
Joy Perry 
David Puranen 
Meghan Witzel 

 

Ministering by Word & 
Example 2013-2014 
Peggy Abbot 
Alison Westervelt 
Tanis Kolisnyk 
Cathy Clow 
Diane Ives Lewis 
John Baker 
Arleen Hall 
Diane Panting 

 

Joint Degrees 
CCS has agreements with St. Stephen’s 
College in Edmonton and the United Centre 
for Theological Studies at the University of 
Winnipeg crediting CCS work toward an 
academic degree.  The following were granted 
in 2014: 
SSC Bachelor of Theological Studies: 
Terrie Chedore 
UCTS, Bachelor of Theology: 
Jamie Bradshaw  
Lyn Workman 
UCTS, Master of Arts in Spiritual Disciplines 
and Ministry Practices: 
Tracy Fairfield 
Gwen McAllister 
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Field Placement Volunteers 

Learning Facilitators 
Sharon Ballantyne 

Martin Brokenleg 

Paul Campbell 

Ross Carson 

Marianne Dekker 

Trudy Epp 

Tracy Fairfield 

Greg Glatz 

Eric Hamlyn 

Alice Hanson 

Christian Harvey 

Lyle Horn 

Shirley Lindsay 

Scott MacAuley 

Arthur Menu 

Christina Paradela 

Lorraine Powell 

James Ravenscroft 

Marcelo Saplagio 

Angela Schmidt 

David Shearman 

Leenane Shiels 

Terry Shillington 

Bette Shippam 

Geoffrey Simmins 

Ian Smith 

Catherine Tovell 

Marilyn Townsend-Smith 

Bev Ward 

Robin Wardlaw 

 

 

Vocational Mentors 
Leanne Benoit 

Anne Crawford 

Brenda Curtis 

Denise Davis Taylor 

Deborah Deavu 

Ken DeLisle 

Caryn Douglas 

Linda Ervin 

Tracy Fairfield 

Joan Golden 

Mark Green 

Debra Hinksman 

Kimiko Karpoff 

Jody Maltby 

Patricia McColl 

Sherri McConnell 

Mary Anne MacFarlane 

Sally Meyer 

Brenda Miller 

Nancy Ringham 

Debbie Stockdale 

Helen Reed 

Kathryn Toivanen 

Deborah Vitt 

Nancy Wilson 

Verna Windrem 

Lyn Workman 

 

 

 

2014 Graduates 

Citation read at the Annual Service of 

Celebration, March 30, 2014: 

I am honored to present to you the 

graduates of 2014: Barbara Hansen, 

Ellen Baynton-Walker, Gwen 

McAllister, Jacqueline Samson, Jamie 

Bradshaw, Kelley Warner, Kristin 

Wood. 

Their presence before us is an 

expression of persistent hope.   
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Collectively they have: 

 spent 38 years in the diploma program 
 participated in 57 learning circles… for 

which they have read approximately 
53,000 pages of books and articles 

 completed 497½ CCS assignments 
 finished 56 external courses  
 served in 21 field placements in 

congregations, correctional service 
facilities, community ministries, circles 
of reconciliation, Habitat for Humanity, 
long-term care facilities. 

They have not done this work alone.  They 

have been accompanied along the way by 

 17 vocational mentors 
 19 learning facilitators 
 91 local committee members 
 21 learning partners 
 and by their families and friends, some 

of whom are able to gather with them 
today. 

Their learning has also been enhanced by 

guests and resource people in learning 

circles; staff at CCS and faculty at 

theological schools across the country 

where they have taken courses; by visits to, 

and worshiping with, ecumenical and 

interfaith communities; by their connection 

with staff and students at the Sandy 

Saulteaux Spiritual Centre; by First Nations 

leaders here in Winnipeg; and by Global 

Perspectives Experiences in Israel and 

Palestine, Venezuela, Guatemala, and the 

Bunibonibee First Nation, Oxford House, 

Manitoba. 

Together, they have grown as leaders in 

education, pastoral care, worship, 

community development. 

Like the tenacious dandelion, their roots 

have grown deep and they have dispersed 

seeds of faith, hope, love, respect, humility, 

justice, and trustworthiness. They have 

come to know the presence of God on the 

margins of society as well as in the centre. 

They have learned to listen to the cries of 

God’s people in distress, - indeed the whole 

of creation in distress, and to respond by 

offering compassion, respect, 

accompaniment, and solidarity, by offering 

glimpses of hope when hope seems remote, 

hope rooted in an unshakable belief that 

love is stronger than hate, that 

life is stronger than death. 

Kristin, Kelly, Jamie, Jacqueline, 

Gwen, Ellen, and Barbara have 

prepared for ministry during a 

time when the church, as we 

have known it, is crumbling 

before our eyes.  To undertake 

leadership in these 

circumstances requires vision 
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and courage and these women abound in 

both.  As their families and friends, you 

have witnessed transformative growth in 

each of them as they have risked opening 

their minds and hearts to new visions, as 

their worlds have become bigger and more 

complex, and a sense of purpose more 

unshakable. 

We are grateful for the persistent hope that 

they offer to each of us, to our churches, 

and to our world. We celebrate with them 

as they move forward from this place and 

we give thanks to God. 

 

2014 Companions of the Centre 

The Companion of the Centre award was 

established in 2001. Through this award CCS 

honours people who have brought 

distinction and made significant 

contribution to the Centre for Christian 

Studies and whose lives and work epitomize 

the ideals of the Centre. 

In 2014 the Companion of the Centre award 

was presented to Lynda Gow and to Eric 

Tusz-King at the Annual Service of 

Celebration on March 30, 2014. 

Eric Tusz-King 

Eric Tusz-King is being honoured today as a 

Companion of the Centre for Christian 

Studies because he lives, exemplifies, and 

supports diaconal ministry.  I like the folk 

etymology that suggests that diakonia 

means “through the dust” – the one who 

stirs things up, kicks up the dust, and makes 

new paths in the desert in service to God 

and others.   

Eric’s life and ministry personify these 

ancient qualities of diakonia, combining the 

practical and the symbolic, the personal and 

the systemic, just as Jesus did when he 

washed the disciples’ feet.  Jesus wasn’t just 

trying to get the dust off; he was showing 

his followers how to lead –not imperiously 

like the Empire, but alongside others, taking 

care of their needs and vulnerabilities, 



 CCS Annual Report 2014  | 19 

 

reversing the positions of privilege and 

poverty. 

Eric studied at the Centre for Christian 

Studies, graduating in 1978, and was 

commissioned by the Maritime Conference.  

He also earned an M.A. in Adult Education 

at St. Francis Xavier University, and an 

M.T.S. from St. Stephen’s College, 

Edmonton.  His thesis developed a process 

for educating Presbyteries about diaconal 

ministry.   

Eric began his ministry in 

1978 at St. John’s United 

Church in Moncton, N.B. 

where he was Minister for 

Christian Education and 

Visitation. After two years 

in congregational ministry, 

he moved on to work at 

the General Council Office as an animator 

for global partnerships in the Division of 

World Outreach.  Working in an office with 

administrative responsibilities is an 

honourable diaconal profession!  He served 

faithfully in his role there during the 1980s, 

using it as a platform to make other things 

happen.  He was a member of the 

ecumenical Task Force on Churches and 

Corporate Responsibility (TCCR); and a 

member of the United Church Task Force on 

Commissioned Ministry.  He was a co-

founder of the Diakonia of the United 

Church of Canada (DUCC), and continues to 

be an active member of that organization at 

the national and international levels.  He 

served for many years on the Committee on 

Diaconal Ministry as an articulate advocate 

for diaconal ministry in the United Church 

of Canada.  

One of Eric’s supporters identified him as a 

person of action who believes that change 

is possible and helps to make it happen. 

What a great description of a diaconal 

minister!  More than one person spoke of 

Eric’s skills in critical analysis and as an 

advocate of social and environmental 

justice.  These skills led him to challenge 

unjust structures of 

institutions and society, to 

speak truth to power, and 

to cooperate with the 

work of the Spirit in the 

life of the communities of 

which he has been part.  

In the early 90s he 

undertook to work with the Economic 

Animation Project in Sidney, Nova Scotia, 

and was later appointed Minister for 

Outreach, Stewardship and Mission Support 

for the Maritime Conference, a position he 

filled from 1993 to 2006.  During this 

tenure, he undertook many social justice 

initiatives: as a co-founder of the Aboriginal 

Rights Coalition-Atlantic (ARC-A) and co-

founder of the Task Group on Aboriginal 

Relationships and Concerns for Maritime 

Conference, advocating with the Aboriginal 

population for the exercise of their fishing 

rights.  I love that Eric was a co-founder, 

working in twos or more with others to 

make change happen. 

Eric Tusz-King: 

a person of action who 

believes that change is 

possible and helps to 

make it happen. 
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These initiatives demonstrated Eric’s keen 

sense of hospitality to those on the edges of 

systems and society, and a growing 

awareness of the importance of God’s 

creation.  They led him over time into his 

role as a faithful “household manager” or 

economist, concerned with the wellbeing of 

the oiko-nomos, God’s great household that 

links together people with people, and 

people with the earth in a web of life.  

Serving on TCCR (Taskforce on the Churches 

and Corporate Responsibility) in the 1980s, 

and working with the Economic Animation 

Project in the early 90s, and with ARC-A 

(Aboriginal Rights Coalition-Atlantic) in the 

mid-90s, helped to hone his skills as an 

animator, educator, and a starter upper.  In 

2004 he became a founding director of EOS 

Eco-Energy Inc., a non-profit organization 

devoted to public education and research 

into energy conservation, renewable energy 

technologies, and sustainable community 

planning.  He founded yet two more 

companies, Energreen Builders Cooperative, 

renovating homes to become energy 

efficient, and Open Sky Cooperative, 

providing assistance and community for 

young adults facing social, developmental, 

or mental health challenges.   

While serving “through the dust” as a 

person of action, Eric also engaged others in 

action and reflection – as a mentor, friend, 

and supporter of diaconal ministers, of CCS 

and our students.  He served in the early 

2000s on the Central Council and continues 

to be a loyal supporter of our school.  He 

has encouraged those seeking to become 

diaconal ministers.  In the words of one of 

his supporters, “Eric has offered interesting 

ministry in unusual ways... part of an 

esteemed group who exemplify excellence 

in ministry leadership and diaconal style.  

His ministry is expressed in ways that 

epitomize the ideals of diaconal ministry” 

and, I would add, the values of CCS.   

Eric Tusz-King, thank you.  You have kicked 

up the dust in service to God and others.  

You have served faithfully as an animator 

and administrator.  You have been an agent 

 

A collection of Companions of 

the Centre (L to R): 

Ken Delisle (2008) 

Eric Tusz-King (2014) 

Lynda Gow (2014) 

Dorothy Naylor (2009) 

Charlotte Caron (2012) 

Cathy Campbell (2010) 
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of change, a speaker of truth to power, an 

advocate for justice and a starter upper, a 

steward of God’s household.  You have also 

been a friend to diaconal ministers and a 

loyal supporter of the Centre for Christian 

Studies to which we now welcome you as a 

Companion. 

Lynda Gow 

Lynda Gow was born in Saint John, New 

Brunswick.  Her formal education includes: 

her BA from the University of New 

Brunswick, the CCS Diploma, and a Masters 

in Diaconal Ministry, from St. Stephen’s 

College.  Her extensive continuing 

education endeavours range from a 

semester at St. Andrew’s Theological 

College (Saskatoon) to a Ministry of 

Supervision Course, to a Clinical Pastoral 

Education unit and training as a Sexual 

Abuse Consultant to biblical courses, to 

short term courses at St. Stephen’s College 

to study trips in India, Zambia, Iona, and 

Australia for the Parliament of World 

Religions.   

Lynda loves to learn.  She assesses clearly 

what she needs to learn, and intentionally 

goes about planning ways to develop her 

skills and grow as a person.  

Before her official designation as a diaconal 

minister, Lynda worked as a youth and 

young adult director in YWCA in St. John, 

and a Manpower counselor in Amherst. 

Since commissioning in 1978, she has 

served congregations in: Sherwood Park, 

Alberta; St. Andrew’s United, Calgary; 

Southminister-Steinhauer, Edmonton and 

Knox-Metropolitan United, Edmonton.  

Since retirement she has acted as 

Recreation Director, Ashbourne Assisted 

Living Place in Edmonton. 

Her ministry has embraced educational 

endeavours and leadership development. 

She demonstrates a sensitivity that meets 

congregational members where they are. 

Mid-week groups and Sunday school 

teachers have benefitted from her 

guidance. Traditional groups and members 

felt supported by Lynda. At the same time 

members with emerging interests and 

educational needs in areas such as 

feminism and justice in sexual orientation 

have appreciated her leadership. 

Quietly and without fanfare, she journeys 

with others, providing pastoral care for the 

elderly, visiting in care facilities and in the 

homes of members who couldn’t get out 

anymore, accompanying those who are 

struggling with a variety of crises and 

concerns.  

Social justice concerns and ecumenical 

connections have been important to her. 

She respects differences, honours diversity 

and carries a compassion for others. 

Virtually all of her ministry positions have 

been in team ministries. In each of these 

situations she has proven herself a 

professional and a team player. 
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She dedicates herself to every task she 

undertakes: Local church committees, 

Presbytery Pastoral Relations, Conference 

Education and Students the General Council 

permanent committee on Ministry and 

Employment Policies and Services, Diakonia 

of The United Church of Canada, CCS 

Harassment Advisory Committee. 

Her knowledge of church policies and 

procedures is connected with her wisdom. 

She can sit back, ponder a situation and 

then calmly offer a solution 

that is logical and doable. 

She approaches issues and 

making decisions with a 

gentle and informed 

honesty. If the situation 

calls for it she can certainly 

be firm and clear, but she is 

never authoritarian or 

controlling.  

Throughout her ministry, she has mentored 

others in a way that people felt they could 

go to her with questions, hopes, fears. She 

listens patiently, without judgment offering 

her genuine acceptance of people, her 

warmth and good humour, and her 

unfailing friendship. 

A woman of hospitality, her home acts as a 

gathering place for many special occasions 

and as a Bed and Breakfast for out of town 

guests. Her residence is a place of welcome, 

an easy place to be and it reflects her 

generosity of spirit. 

Lynda values community, and learning in 

community.  She has participated actively in 

the annual Women’s Weekend held in 

Alberta and Northwest Conference, in 

retreats planned for diaconal ministers in 

the conference, in the national gathering of 

the United Church diaconal community. 

Modeling self-care Lynda balances her 

commitment to others and to herself, keeps 

herself healthy and functioning well, 

maintains clear boundaries, claims time for 

rest and renewal, 

pursues leisure time 

activities that give her 

energy and life. 

One of her nominators 

wrote, “Dedication, 

perseverance, loyalty, 

professionalism, and 

good humour are 

characteristics that define Lynda Gow.” 

Another testified that Linda demonstrates 

great integrity: an integration of faith and 

life; an integration of theory and practice; 

an integration of faith, education, justice, 

service and pastoral care; an integration of 

the “inner” and “outward” life.   

In naming Lynda as a Companion of CCS, we 

honour a person who, throughout her 

ministry, worked with a gentle diligence in 

roles assigned to her, while nudging herself 

and the church toward faithfulness and 

transformation. 

 

Lynda Gow: 

dedication, 

perseverance, loyalty, 

professionalism, and 

good humour. 
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Program Committee Report – Kimiko Karpoff 

If there is an image that arises for me 
when reflecting on the Program 
Committee work of 2014, it is one of 
hovering. One aspect of this is hovering 
above in order to try to discern the 
patterns and see what's incoming. 
Hovering is also an energetic action, but 
doesn't necessarily appear to have a lot of 
movement, at least forward movement. 
Hovering connotes waiting. It felt like we 
did a lot of hovering this year.  

Some of the impetus to hover came out of 
our connections to and interactions with 
wider church process. General Council 
began a review of theological education, 
exploring the implementation of a new 
model based on competencies that are 
exclusive of particular programs. They also 
continued re-jigging the funding models to 
theological schools which made it difficult 
to know what the impact on our upcoming 
budgets will be. The resulting uncertainties 
meant that we were not able to land our 
own discussions on program changes and 
strategic directions. This is not necessarily a 
bad thing as it also created space and time 
for rich discussion and careful discernment.  

One discussion that carried through the 
year was on hiring a third full-time program 
staff. The face-to-face meeting of 2013 
identified the hiring of another program 
staff as a top priority. Not only are the 
current staff dealing with very large 
workloads, there was also recognition of 
the need to consider planning for the 
retirement of the existing staff over the 
next several years. 

As we got into the discussions we realized 
there were several possible avenues to 
consider as we looked at possibility. Do we 
want someone who has a particular 
denominational affiliation? Do we want 
someone with particular academic 
credentials to meet potential General 
Council needs? Do we want someone who 
will look at new programming and 
innovation? All of these have merit and 
challenges.  

In the meantime work still needed to get 
done and staff were still dealing with heavy 
workloads. In the interim time it was 
decided to hire people on contract to do 
specific tasks.  Former students were 
recruited to co-facilitate the Leadership 
Development Model with Ted. This also 
responded to a desire to increase the 
capacity base of CCS for potential program 
expansion or changes. Some of the marking 
was done externally. And contractors were 
also hired to do field placement 
orientations in BC. These steps have worked 
well for this year. Further discussion on 
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staffing is expected to happen at the face-
to-face meeting in April. 

Some Highlights from the Year 

 Ministry by Word and Example, a 
program for Anglican deacons. 8 people 
went through the program, with 6 
graduating. Feedback affirmed that it 
was beneficial to all participants and 
offered some specific suggestions for 
strengthening the program in the 
future.  

 The Prior Learning Assessment Review 
policy was completed and received 
approval by Central Council. CCS 
received 4 requests for the fall year, 2 
for exemption from parts of Pastoral 
Care Year and one for exemption from 
parts of the Diploma program. Working 
through these requests uncovered some 
glitches and will help us streamline the 
process as we move forward.  

 In the midst of the United Church 
exploring moving to a competency 
model of theological education, Ann 
Naylor visualized (by this I mean made 
visual) the CCS competency model as a 
tool for tracking student progress over 
time.  

 With only two students in Integrating 
Year, staff and students decided to try 
an alternative format which included 
face-to-face time, intentional time 
through use of technology and some 
time in alternative locations. The format 
was conceived with input from the 
students involved.  

 The autumn Pastoral Care Year learning 
circle was joined by participants in the 
Loss and Lamentation event for five 

days of joint learning and exploration of 
pastoral care in times of grief and loss, 
death and dying and end of life care. 

 Ann Naylor took a sabbatical in 2014. 
Her sabbatical report can be viewed at 
http://ccsonline.ca/2014/08/music-
image-sabbath/  

 CCS partnered with Bob Haverluck on 
selling a series of three books with an 
environmental theme that he had 
written as recipient of a McGeachy 
Scholarship. 

 The LDM task group drafted a new 
purpose and goals and suggested a new 
name for the Leadership Development 
Module. This work is on-going.  

 The Anglican Foundation approved a 
grant of $10,000 for CCS to create and 
deliver a portion of a new Anglican 
program for youth called the Winter 
Youth Leadership Development program 
(WYLD) in Sorrento, BC in 2015. The CCS 
proposal is called Fall Forward, Spring 
Back. 

 After careful consideration, CCS 
declined a request to team with Five 

http://ccsonline.ca/2014/08/music-image-sabbath/
http://ccsonline.ca/2014/08/music-image-sabbath/
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Oaks on a Pastoral Care training 
initiative, but with gratitude for the 
invitation. 

 The Awards Working Group awarded a 
$10,000 Kaufman Scholarship to 
HyeRan Kim-Cragg in 2014 for research 
she is doing in Guatemala, Philippines, 
and Korea on a theology of resistance, 
and the Myers-Rutherford Scholarship 

to Jamie Bradshaw for continuing 
studies.  The working group awarded 
the 2014 Companion of the Centre 
Award to Eric Tusz-King and Lynda Gow, 
and announced that Irene Rainey will be 
the 2015 recipient. 

Submitted with respect, 

Kimiko Karpoff, Program Committee 

 

Partnership Task Group Report – Dorothy Naylor & 

Frank Tyrell 

The appointment of a Partnership Task 
Group by Central Council arose from the 
2013 Strategic Planning process.  It was 
clear that, moving into the future, 
partnerships would be increasingly 
important in the life and work of CCS, and 
that there could be value in asking a small 
group to focus on this aspect. This group is 
experimental at this point; it is not part of 
the governance structure. 

Highlights of our Work             

 Development of Terms of Reference 

 Initiating Council meeting at/with Sandy 
Saulteaux Spiritual Centre as part of our 
2015 Face to Face meeting.  Planning 
responsibilities for this meeting  

 Reviewing existing and developing 
partnerships. Some involvement in 
initiating and assessing possible new 
partnerships. Criteria developed for 
assessment 

 During the last year, some of the 
partnerships explored have been: 

Evangelical Lutheran Church in Canada, 
Huron College, Vancouver School of 
Theology, Five Oaks Centre, United 
Theological College Montreal, University 
of Winnipeg 

Future Agenda 

Further development of our mandate, 
guided by the Terms of Reference 

Reflections 

It has been encouraging to follow the 
development of partnerships – both those 
initiated by CCS and those proposed by 
outside sources. Within the latter group, it 
does reveal something positive about the 
“reach” of CCS, due in large part to the 
integrity of its staff and its programs.   

Membership: Frank Tyrell (an Anglican 
representative on Council), Dorothy Naylor 
(a United Church representative on 
Council), Maylanne Maybee (staff) 
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Finance Committee Report – Tim Sale 

Operating and Bursary Accounts 

We ended the year with a significant surplus 

slightly in excess of $40,000.  This is somewhat 

lower than hoped for, because the year-end 

campaign fell about $18,000 short of our very 

aggressive goal of $100,000. Revenue in all 

other budget categories was either at or 

above projections, and the major gifts of 

$68,000 exceeded budget by $53,000.  

Additionally, we had a 2014 gift of securities 

worth over $24,000 that has been deposited 

into our Endowment Fund.  We received 

grants of $9,000 for our computer refresh 

project, which almost covered the cost of 

$10,400.  At our January meeting, The Finance 

Committee agreed to transfer the entire 

amount of bequests received in 2014 to the 

Endowment Fund. Because these were not 

specifically allocated to any purpose, these 

funds are available in future for special 

projects at the direction of Central Council.  

We ended the year with almost $300,000 

more in our Endowment and Bursary Fund 

than at the end of 2013. 

Property 

CCS's home in the historic Woodsworth House 

continues to be in good repair and to serve us 

well, though at times is cramped for larger 

learning circles.  In order to manage this 

problem we have begun renting short-term 

space at a nearby Lutheran Church. This 

allowed us to expand a pastoral care learning 

circle with some additional learners this fall.  

Central Council asked for a preliminary review 

of expansion possibilities to also address 

accessibility issues. The conclusion of this 

preliminary study was that it would be 

extremely costly to bring the building up to 

full accessibility standards, and that the 

possibility of expansion, while feasible, would 

not yield much improvement, but would also 

be costly.  In the light of other pressing 

priorities, Central Council agreed to take no 

action on the building at this time. 

Bursary Working Group 

The Bursary Working Group dispersed $46,950 

in bursaries for 16 students for the 2014-2015 

school year. 

Faithfully Facing our Future 

A major uncertainty facing CCS in 2016 will be 

the UCC grant levels for both candidate aid 

and operating support.  We have been warned 

to expect reductions in the range of 20%, 

which will add a significant burden to the 

2016 budget.  Additionally, we are carrying a 

projected budget deficit for 2015 of $18,000.  

In the light of these realities we have analysed 

possible ways to avoid this and future deficits. 

The take-home message from this analysis is 

that CCS can thrive in spite of cuts from the 

UCC if we can increase our tuition revenues 

significantly in the next two years.  There are 

many paths to that goal, and Maylanne’s 

report suggests some of them.  I believe that 

we should consider a strategic allocation of 

capital to undertake initiatives aimed at 
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enrolment increases as early as possible in this 

current year. In the meantime, all CCS 

members and supporters can help by “talent-

spotting”.  Who do you know in your circle of 

companions that could and should attend an 

LDM to see the great things that CCS can bring 

to empower them for transformative 

ministry?  If we even matched last year’s new 

enrolment of ten new students, we would 

have no problems.  Better yet, our faith 

communities would emerge stronger; better 

equipped to face our uncertain, but holy 

future. 

Respectfully submitted,  

Tim Sale, Chair, Finance Committee 

 

Development Working Group – Lori Stewart 

The members of the Development Working 

Group for 2014 were Brenda Curtis, Ross 

Taylor, Barbara Barnett, and Jim Hatt, staffed 

by Lori Stewart, Development Coordinator.  As 

she completes her term, we extend our thanks 

to Brenda Curtis for offering her time and 

wisdom. 

The Development Working Group put in place 

a Development Plan for 2014.  The focus was 

on building relationships with donors, 

knowing that these people already care about 

our mission and want to see it grow.  With this 

overall goal in mind, the DWG prepared 

policies to guide the development work, 

worked to prepare effective means of 

communication with donors through 

compelling student impact stories, 

information sheets for various types of 

donors, annual campaign letters, and made 

“thank you” phone calls.   They were involved 

in planning for relationship building activities 

throughout the year involving development 

lunches with students, gatherings, visits, and 

cards.   

The DWG understands its work to undergird 

and flow through the entire life of CCS as we 

find ways to make connections between the 

things people are passionate about and the 

impact CCS students are having for justice, 

compassion, and transformation. 

Submitted by  

Lori Stewart, CCS Development Coordinator 
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2013 Financial Summary and 2014 Budget 

Summary 

 

2015 
budget 

2014 
actual 

2014 
budget 

2013 
actual  

Comments & 
Explanations 

 Revenues  $516,527 $585,760 $511,010 $526,057 
 

 Expenses  $535,234 $493,729 $498,480 $518,224 
 

 Surplus/Deficit  -$18,707 $92,031 $12,530 $7833   

Revenue 

Budget Item 
2015 
budget 

2014 
actual 

2014 
budget 

2013 
actual 

Comments & 
Explanations 

Endowment 
transfer  

$107,700 $105,060 $105,060 $102,000 
 

Grants & 
Donations  

$238,427 $321,030* $246,250 $276,750 *large bequest in 2014 

Operating 
Revenue  

$8,000 $10,400 $11,000 $14,522 
 

Program 
Revenue  

$162,400 $149,270 $148,700 $132,785 
 

Total Revenue  $516,527 $585,760 $511,010 $526,057   

Expenses 

Budget Item 
2015 
budget 

2014 
actual 

2014 
budget 

2013 actual 
Comments & 
Explanations 

Administration  $43,450 $59,167* $56,494 $57,261 
*includes computer 
replacements in 2014 

Governance  $12,400 $15,580 $14,300 $19,935 
 

Library  $1,350 $1,409 $2,800 $833 
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Program  $46,475* $18,410 $14,700 $16,782 

*includes costs for 
LDMs, learning circles, 
marking contracts, 
alternative programs 

Promotion & 
Recruitment  

$17,950 $14,700 $14,350 $6,648 
 

Property $30,300 $18,700 $24,200 $24,237 
 

Special Projects   $15,750* $61, 523 
*budgeted for 
consultants and 
strategic planning 

Staff Salaries  $383,309 $365,762 $371,636 $331,005 
 

 Total Expenses  $535,234 $493,729 $514,230 $518,224   

 
See the auditor’s report for a more detailed breakdown of CCS’s financial picture. 
 

 

Communications & Promotions Committee Report 

One thing you might notice about the 

membership of our committee in 2014 is 

that we had more staff connected to us 

than many other CCS committees did.  

That’s because the work of communications 

touches so many different parts of CCS.  

Communications is how we recruit 

students, but it’s also how we connect to 

our donors, but it’s also how we let the 

church and the larger society know who we 

are, but it’s also how our students, staff, 

and volunteers get the information they 

need to do their day-to-day work and 

learning.  CCS doesn’t have a designated 

“communications” staff person, so in 2014 

Maylanne, Scott, and Lori formed a 



 CCS Annual Report 2014  | 31 

 

Communications Staff Cluster (sometimes 

called a triumvirate) to coordinate 

communications activities on the staff level, 

with guidance and direction-setting from 

the Communications & Promotions 

Committee. 

One of the legacies that Helen Reed left us 

when she stepped down as chair in 2014 

was a revised and clarified terms of 

reference for the committee.  This has been 

helpful as we’ve oriented new members 

and engaged the continuing work of 

developing a communications strategy for 

CCS.  That strategy is still emerging, but the 

committee seems committed to raising 

CCS’s profile (in the church and in the 

world), engaging the CCS community in 

conversation (not just talking at them, but 

with them, and getting them talking to each 

other), and letting potential students know 

that CCS is a place for questions and for 

learning. 

Common Threads, our regular e-bulletin of 

news and reflections, has shifted from bi-

weekly to monthly without many 

complaints from readers (and a big shift in 

Scott’s workload).  The Tapestry newsletter 

goes out three times a year, by mail to 

those who aren’t wired in and electronically 

to others.  Lori Stewart does a heroic job 

organizing displays for Conferences, 

Synods, and other events.  Our website, 

Facebook page, Twitter feed, and YouTube 

channel help the world know who we are.  

(The Second Fridays videos from 2014 in 

particular are a great conversation-starter 

on reconciliation, healing, and solidarity 

with Indigenous peoples.)  CCS Council and 

committees have shifted to a new 

teleconference system, and CCS students 

are using the open-source platform Moodle 

for online access to readings, assignments, 

and resources. 

We’re pleased to have Del Sexsmith coming 

in as chair of the Communications 

Committee.  His years of experience in 

advertising and media will be useful as we 

explore using focus groups to help us set 

directions and decide the best ways of 

connecting with our community and 

reaching out to new friends and prospective 

students. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Scott Douglas, on behalf of Communications 

Committee 
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2014 Human Resources Committee Report – Lindsay 

Allan 

Highlights of the Work of the HR 

Committee 

1. We have spent considerable time this 

year recruiting for the position of Office 

Administrator.  The position description 

was updated, the position advertised 

and interviewed.  A suitable candidate 

was found and the position was filled. 

The position however, became vacant 

again late in the year.  The position was 

filled on an interim basis while the 

salary was reviewed as well as the 

position description to ensure that 

future recruitment for the position will 

lead to a long term incumbent. 

2. The Principal’s Performance Review 

was performed early in the year and 

resulted in valuable and positive 

feedback regarding Maylanne’s role.  

Comments received during the review 

were appreciative of Maylanne’s 

leadership and reaffirmed the need for 

self-care and balance in workload. 

3. We have reviewed CCS’s Personnel 

Policies, and have been working on 

harmonization with other policies to 

ensure consistency in language and 

process.  Work has been done on the 

Contract and Permanent Staff policy, 

Screening policy, and Conflict of Interest 

policy.  Review of other policies is 

ongoing.  Process and procedure 

guidelines have also been developed as 

a guide for recruitment process. 

4. There have been reviews of current job 

descriptions to continue to update 

them as we become aware of changes in 

responsibilities.   

5. We are working on job analysis for the 

staff – recording tasks and 

responsibilities of each role.  This is to 

make the transfer of knowledge more 

fluid and to ensure that workloads are 

manageable.  This is to be achieved 

through staff recording their daily, 

weekly, and monthly activities.  There 

will be face to face discussions with the 

committee and staff to discuss the roles 

as well. 

6. The HR Committee members are fairly 

new to role: Mona and Kresta have each 

been on the committee for one year, 

Lindsay is going into her third year, with 

this being her first year as Chair.  There 

is one vacant position on the 

committee. 

7. The Harassment Advisory Working 

Group has had a light workload, which is 

a good sign.  In the past year they’ve 

met three times by conference call, sent 

letters to CCS staff and students 

reminding them of the Harassment 

Policy, and are working on revisions to 



 CCS Annual Report 2014  | 33 

 

the brochure letting people know that 

the Working Group exists for  students, 

staff, and volunteers who wishes to 

consult with someone about their 

experience of harassment and explore 

possible options.  Dorothy Naylor has 

completed three terms on the Working 

Group and is being replaced by Heather 

Robbins. 

Plans for 2015: Continue with items 1, 3, 4, 

and 5 above. 

Reflections: We are grateful to Paul 

Hagerman for his years of work on this 

committee. The remaining committee is 

strong, with 2 active HR professionals, and a 

willingness to assist CCS with both day-to-

day HR concerns and long-term strategic 

work. 

Submitted by 

Lindsay Allan, Human Resources Committee 

 

Planning & Governance Committee Report – Patty Evans 

The Planning and Governance Committee 

has as its purpose to assist the Council in 

setting and monitoring its mission and 

planning, and to provide oversight of its 

records.  In the third year of its existence, 

this committee has been engaged in a 

number of endeavours that are outlined 

below. 

Highlights of the work of the committee 

Key Performance Indicators for the 

Strategic Plan 

As implementation began on the new 

Strategic Plan, it was apparent that some 

instrument was needed to evaluate and 

measure achievement.  As one of the 

responsibilities of the Planning & 

Governance Committee is to ensure that 

the current plan is monitored, it was thus 

the committee’s task to develop a tool by 

which the work toward the goals could be 

assessed.  How would we know that we had 

achieved what we had set out to do? 

Thus, the Planning & Governance 

Committee, with specific input from Linda 

Murray and Maylanne Maybee in the early 

stages, developed Key Performance 

Indicators for the Strategic Plan.  This 

document was taken to Council for input 

partway along.  With the wisdom of Council 

members, it was further refined and in 

January the Council received the latest draft 

as a useful tool that will guide the 

monitoring/evaluative processes that the 

Planning & Governance Committee will 

initiate for the Council at regular intervals. 

Changes in the Governance Model  

To ensure work on the goals in the Strategic 

Plan that related to existing and potential 

partners of CCS, a Partnerships Task Group 

was named that is accountable to the 
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Central Council.  The members of that 

group have been identifying their task and 

have begun work toward developing and 

enhancing partnerships with the Centre.  

Terms of reference were approved at the 

January meeting of Central Council.  

The Planning and Governance Committee 

also oversaw a revision of the terms of 

reference for the Communications and 

Promotions Committee.  Having done so, 

the committee worked with the Volunteer 

Recruitment and Support Working Group to 

identify members, some existing and some 

new, who could carry this work forward.  

There is now a functioning committee that 

is beginning its work with the leadership of 

the new chairperson, Del Sexsmith.  

Working Groups 

The Planning and Governance Committee 

oversees two working groups.  This past 

year their work has included the following: 

Archives Working Group 

Gwenna Moss, who chaired the working 

group up until March when she had to 

resign for personal reasons, provided a 

detailed list of work yet to be done.  Diane 

Haglund and Terry Reilly have continued on 

as members, though collectively the group 

has taken a break.  The broad outline of 

work to be done included the following: 

 Documentation and storage of historical 

items—historic deaconess uniform and 

other artifacts 

 Inventory and Storage of Photographs  

 Sorting and Storing Files and Print 

Material  

 Audio-Visual Holdings  

 Policy Items  

 Printing Minutes of All Central Council 

Committees and placing in binders 

 On-going Filing of Material in Graduates’ 

Files and the Persons’ File 

Terry Reilly has worked with Ann Naylor on 

the photographs.  Terry also had a helpful 

session with the staff regarding what 

documents and other materials should be 

saved and in what form and what could be 

discarded. 

In September, on the request of the 

Archives Working Group, Planning & 

Governance took the following motion to 

Central Council where it was approved: 

…That Central Council authorize the transfer 

of the original documents related to the 

purchase of 60 Maryland Street and the 

history of that property to the storage 

facilities of the Archives of Manitoba 

Northwest Ontario Conference of the United 

Church of Canada under the terms of the 

agreement between CCS and the Archives.  

Further, the Central Council directs that 

copies of these documents be retained in 

the offices of CCS and that a notice 

regarding the location of the original 

documents be included in those files. 
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Volunteer Recruitment and Support 

Working Group 

Through the year the Recruitment Working 

Group has been primarily involved in filling 

the various Council, committee, and 

working group vacancies.  Recruitment is a 

major task and we are very appreciative of 

the endeavours of this group.  Maureen 

McCartney is completing her term as 

chairperson and special thanks go to 

Maureen for her commitment and tenacity 

in the task of recruitment.  The work of this 

group will be summarized in the slate that is 

presented to the annual meeting.    

In its support function the group has sought 

to be supportive of all new volunteers.  To 

that end, the Planning and Governance 

Committee followed through with the 

orientation packet that last year at this time 

was in the process of being assembled. This 

now is being provided to all new volunteers 

to expand the orientation and support 

function.  In addition to the support from 

this working group, the committee chairs 

(or designates) have been asked to be in 

contact with new members.  Even as some 

folk begin their terms, the working group 

will be ensuring that notes of appreciation 

are sent to all those who are leaving their 

positions. 

Agenda items for the coming year: 

Strategic Plan Monitoring  

The Planning & Governance Committee will 

be fulfilling its monitoring role as the plan is 

implemented, both through individual 

contact with committee chairpersons, and 

at Council meetings.  The Key Performance 

Indicators will be useful in this process.  

Monitoring the Governance Model 

The Planning & Governance Committee will 

continue ongoing assessment of the 

governance model as it is now structured.    

Ensuring that proper books and records are 

kept in order 

All committees have been requested to 

submit minutes on a regular basis to be sent 

electronically to the Administrative 

Assistant, the Co-chairs and the Principal.  

Members of the Planning & Governance 

Committee review the minute books on an 

annual basis to ensure that they are in 

order. 

The committee will also continue to be 

informed of the working groups’ efforts and 

will provide them assistance and guidance 

when needed. 

Further Comments and Reflections: 

As the mandate of the Planning & 

Governance Committee is to “assist the 

Council in setting and monitoring its mission 

and planning”, it has been good to 

experience the openness and engagement 

of the Council with whatever the committee 

brings forward for its consideration.  The 

Council demonstrates a wonderful sense of 

cohesion and cooperation as we move 

forward in the implementation of the 
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Strategic Plan and in the ongoing work of 

the Centre. 

In the oversight role of the Planning and 

Governance Committee, we are observing 

with gratitude the energy and commitment 

of those serving on the various committees 

and working groups, as well as the Central 

Council.   These groups also receive valuable 

and much appreciated support from the 

staff members of CCS in the midst of their 

already heavy workloads.  Their grace, skills, 

and wisdom are gifts indeed. (Special 

thanks go from our committee to Maylanne 

Maybee for her excellent support of our 

work.)  

The Planning and Governance Committee 

looks ahead to the coming year with 

anticipation and the assurance of guidance 

by the Spirit as we seek to live out the 

mission and core values of the Centre and 

work toward the discerned goals of the 

Strategic Plan. 

I conclude with a personal word of 

appreciation for the opportunity to serve as 

chairperson of this committee from its 

establishment six years ago to the present.  

I have had such excellent colleagues with 

whom to work and I am deeply grateful for 

their skills and commitment.  As 

chairperson, I also had the privilege of 

serving on the Central Council, representing 

my committee and engaging in the work of 

the Centre.  These six years of involvement 

in these capacities have been enriching for 

my life and, I hope, have contributed in 

some small way toward the mission of the 

Centre. 

Submitted by 

Patty Evans, Planning & Governance 

Committee 

 

2015 Nominations 

Goodbye and thank you to the following 

volunteers who are retiring from positions… 

Jim Boyles - Central Council, co-chair 

Brenda Curtis - Development 

Patty Evans - Planning & Governance, chair 

Paul Hagerman - Human Resources, chair 

Jim Hatt - Development, student rep 

Maureen McCartney  - Volunteer Recruitment, 

convenor 

 

 

 

Vicki McPhee - Council, recording secretary 

Dorothy Naylor - Harassment Advisory 

Sally Papso - Property 

Marion Pardy - Awards, convenor 

Helen Reed -Communications, chair 

Morgan Ryder - Central Council, student rep 

Keith Simmonds  - Communications 
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Hello and welcome to the following 

volunteers who are taking on new 

positions… 

Elizabeth Brain  - Awards, chair 

Penny Cummine - Central Council, co-chair 

Patty Evans - Council, recording secretary 

Steve Gilholm - Communications 

Jim Hatt - Development 

Annette Hoare - Volunteer Recruitment 

Barbara Lieurance - Volunteer Recruitment, 

convenor 

Janet Nield - Volunteer Recruitment 

Bob Osborne - Planning & Governance, chair 

Heather Robbins - Harassment Advisory 

Del Sexsmith - Communications, chair 

Jenny Sprong - Common Threads 

 

Nominations Table (as of Feb. 20, 2015) 

CENTRAL COUNCIL 

Role Name  Term 

ACC co-Chair Penny Cummine ACC 2015-2018 1st  term 

UCC co-Chair Carolynne Bouey-Shank UCC 2013-2016 2nd term 

ACC member Frank Tyrrell  ACC 2014-2017 2nd term 

ACC member Walter Deller ACC 2013-2016 2nd term 

UCC member Dorothy Naylor UCC 2015-2018 2nd term 

Student rep    

Student rep Hubert den Draak UCC 2013-2016 

Finance rep Tim Sale ACC 2015-2017 3rd term  

HR rep Lindsay Allan PEN 2014-2016 1st term 

Program rep Kimiko Karpoff UCC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Communications and Promotion rep Del Sexsmith UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Planning and Governance rep Bob Osborne ACC 2015-2017 1st term 

Recording Secretary (non-voting) Patty Evans UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Principal (non-voting) Maylanne Maybee ACC  

Staff rep (non-voting) Lori Stewart UCC  

ACC Theo. Ed. Secretary (ex-officio) Eileen Scully ACC  

UCC Theo. Ed. Secretary (ex-officio) Steve Willey UCC  

 

EXECUTIVE 

ACC co-Chair Penny Cummine ACC 2015-2018 1st  term 

UCC co-Chair Carolynne Bouey-Shank UCC 2013-2016 2nd term 

Recording Secretary (non-voting) Patty Evans UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Treasurer Tim Sale ACC 2015-2017 3rd term 

ACC member  ACC  

UCC member  UCC  

Principal  Maylanne Maybee ACC  
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FINANCE 

Treasurer, Chair Tim Sale ACC 2015-2017 3rd term 

Member Ken Phernambucq UCC 2015-2017 3rd term  

Member Heather Collingridge UCC 2015-2017 3rd term  

Member Brian Faurschou UCC 2014-2016 3rd term 

Member Tannis Young UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Student rep    

Staff (non-voting) rep Maylanne Maybee  ACC - 

Development chair (corresponding) Lori Stewart   

Bursary chair (corresponding) Jen Dresser UCC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Property chair (corresponding)    

 

Development Working Group  

Convenor    - 

ACC member Barbara Barnett ACC 2014-2016 2nd term 

UCC member Ross Taylor  UCC 2015-2017 3rd term 

Member Jim Hatt UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Member    

Student rep    

Staff rep Lori Stewart UCC  

 

Property Working Group  

Member Nathanial Kaplan  2014-2016 1st term 

Member Jim Chapryk Quaker 2015-2017 2nd term 

Member 

 

 

 Staff rep    

 

Bursary Working Group 

Convener Jen Dresser UCC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Member of Finance Committee Ken Phernambucq UCC 2015-2017 3rd term 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Member, Chair Lindsay Allan (chair) PEN 2015-2017 2nd term 

Member 

   Member Mona Denton UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member Kresta Kwamsoos  2014-2016 1st term 

Principal Maylanne Maybee ACC  

Convener of Harassment Adv. Grp.  UCC  
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(corresponding)  

 

Harassment Advisory Working Group 

Member Male Carey Wagner UCC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Member Heather Robbins UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Member Marilyn Boyd ACC 2014-2016 2nd term 

 

PROGRAM 

Chair Kimiko Karpoff UCC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Member Walter Deller ACC 2013-2016 2nd term 

Member Marcie Gibson UCC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Member Kathy Douglas UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member Diane Ives Lewis ACC 2014-2016 1st term 

Student Representative Lynn Smith UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Program staff rep Ann Naylor UCC  

Principal  Maylanne Maybee ACC  

Dean, St. Stephen’s (corresponding) Earle Sharam UCC  

Director, UofWpg UTC 

(corresponding) 

Terry Hidichuk UCC  

         

Awards Working Group 

Convenor Elizabeth Brain ACC 2014-2016 2nd term 

Member Mary Ellen Moore UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Member    

Student rep Anita Rowland UCC 2013-2015 

Staff rep Lori Stewart UCC  

 

Library Working Group 

Member Barb Roberts UCC 2014-2016 3rd term 

Member Diane Dwarka UCC 2014-2016 3rd term 

Member Brianne Selman  2014-2016 1st term 

Student rep    

Staff rep Scott Douglas UCC  

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PROMOTIONS 

Member, Chair Del Sexsmith UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Member Beth Walker UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member David Robinson ACC 2015-2017 3rd term 

Member  Jesse Dymond ACC 2014-2016 1st term 



 CCS Annual Report 2014  | 40 

 

Member Steve Gilholm UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Student rep Joshua Ward UCC 2014-2016 

Staff rep Scott Douglas 

Lori Stewart 

UCC  

 

Common Threads Working Group 

Member  Jeff Cook UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member Laurel Walton UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member Jenny Sprong  2015-2017 1st term 

Staff rep Scott Douglas UCC  

 

PLANNING AND GOVERNANCE 

Member, Chair and Council rep Bob Osborne ACC 2015-2017 1st term 

Member Linda Murray UCC 2014-2016 3rd term 

Member    

Principal Maylanne Maybee ACC  

 

Archives Working Group 

Member Tanya Weigand  2014-2016 1st term 

Member Terry Reilly ACC 2015-2017 2nd term 

Staff Maylanne Maybee ACC  

 

Volunteer Recruitment Working Group  

Convener  Barbara Lieurance UCC 2014-2016 3rd term 

One of the Co-Chairs of Council Carolynne Bouey Shank UCC  2013-2016 2nd term 

Member 

   Member Norah McMurty UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member Vicky Aldersley UCC 2014-2016 1st term 

Member Janet Nield UCC 2015-2017 1st term 

Member Annette Hoare ACC 2015-2017 1st term 

Staff rep Ted Dodd UCC  
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APPENDIX A – 2015 Annual General Meeting 

AGENDA 

Annual General Meeting of Friends of the Centre 

for Christian Studies Canada Inc. 

Thursday February 26, 2015  6:00-8:00 p.m. CST by 

phone 

1. Opening (Carolynne chairing) 

1.1 Welcome, Attendance 

1.2 Worship - Barbara Lloyd 

1.3 Acceptance of Friends 

1.4 Three Stories of CCS Impact in Ministry 

1.5 Agenda Review 

1.6 Approval of Minutes of AGM Feb. 20, 2014 

1.7 Business Arising from Minutes 

 Francophone programming concerns - Maylanne, Kimiko  

2. Reports 

2.1 Business from Annual Report 

 Sharing of Highlights 

 Co-Chairs, Principal, Staff, Students 

2.2 Committee Reports Received for Information 

2.3 Financial Report - Ken Phernambucq 

2.4 Nominations Report - Maureen McCartney 

3. Effects of UCC Restructuring on CCS 

4. Future of CCS - Building Bridges to the Future 

 - Third Program staff person 

 - New Endowment campaign 

 - Alternative funding strategies 

 - New student recruitment 

 - Succession planning 

5. New Business 

6. Thank you 

7. In Memoriam  

8. Closing Prayer & Adjournment 
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Worship for the Annual Meeting 

Gathering In - Light a candle and/or a stick of incense  

Call to worship – (Barbara)  

Focus on the candle and/or breathe in the incense. Silence. 

Opening Prayer (Barbara) - Gracious God, we gather from many places 

and spaces tonight as we become again a community of support and 

encouragement for the life and ministry of the CCS. We bring our own 

challenges and hurts, fears and anxieties for ourselves and for the 

church as a whole. We feel the weight of impending decisions for CCS and for the UCC that will 

shape and transform the way we now know these bodies. Re-structuring, continuing 

development, new partnerships, - where will they take us?  

And in our larger world - poverty and homelessness, the denial of aboriginal rights, climate 

change, migration, the repression of minorities and the rise of militarism and violence - give us 

pause and make us weep for our beleaguered planet and its creatures. We look for you, O God, 

even as we admit our faithlessness, our fears, our cynicism, our sense of powerlessness. We 

look for your balm, for your wisdom, for your direction.  

Compassionate God, Enlivening Spirit: shape us into your Christic community. Send us courage, 

send us love, send us power. Amen. 

Spoken hymn (Western voices)        VU582 There’s a Spirit in the Air, v 1. 

There’s a Spirit in the air, telling Christians everywhere:  

“Praise the love that Christ revealed, living, working, in our world.” 

Reader: Listening to the word – Mark 8:34-38  

Then Jesus called the people to him, as well as his disciples, and said to them, “Anyone who 

wishes to be a follower of mine must leave self behind; they must take up their cross, and come 

with me. Whoever cares for their own safety is lost; but if a person lets themself be lost for my 

sake and for the gospel, that person is safe. What does a person gain by winning the whole 

world at the cost of their true self? What can they give to gain that self back? If anyone is 

ashamed of me and mine in this wicked and godless age, the Human One will be ashamed of 

them, when they come in the glory of God with the holy angels.” (New English Bible 

“inclusified”) 
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Reflections: 

What does it mean to “let ourselves be lost for the sake of Jesus and the gospel”? 

In our personal lives, in our ministry, in the work of CCS - how are we siding with the God of Life 

made known in Jesus, or the god of empire that seems to be ruling our world?  

Thoughts from Sabbath as Resistance: Saying No to the Culture of Now, by Walter 

Brueggemann, Westminster John Know Press, 2014. 

a) In Egypt, in exile, the Moses group lived under Pharaoh’s 

system of slavery, repression and oppression without break or 

relief.  

b) In the wilderness, the experience of “losing oneself” led 

to people finding a new covenant with God, through the 10 

commandments.  

c) Called to another life way – Moses says, “Remember the 

Sabbath day and keep it holy” to this community of migrants 

fleeing the death system of Pharaoh’s rule.  

d) Sabbath as resistance to systems that diminish us, our 

communities and our earth.  

How might practising Sabbath help us to build Christic communities? 

Spoken hymn VU582 There’s a Spirit in the Air, v 4. 

(Central voices) 

Still the Spirit gives us light, seeing wrong and setting right:  

God in Christ has come to stay. Live tomorrow’s life today! 

 (Eastern voices) v.6 

May the Spirit fill our praise, guide our thoughts and change our ways.  

God in Christ has come to stay, live tomorrow’s life today. 

Prayer – (Barbara) Gracious God, we pray for ourselves, for our world, for the ministry and 

mission of the Centre for Christian Studies. We ask you to bless this meeting and all the staff, 

volunteers and friends who embody God’s spirit of life, justice and transformation. “May the 

Spirit fill our praise, guide our thoughts and change our ways. God in Christ has come to stay, 

live tomorrow’s life today.” 
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AT THE END OF THE MEETING 

Memorials – Naming, brief words of remembrance, silence. 

Commissioning and Blessing (Barbara) 

Knowing that we are surrounded by this communion of saints past, present and future, go now 

to live life with renewed energy, purpose and love. Take the courageous and lively spirit of this 

meeting into your heart and into our world.  

May God bless us with light, with breath, and with an active and subversive imagination for 

Gods’ new heaven and earth emerging within and before us. Amen. 

 

Membership Information 

From the Centre for Christian Studies by-laws 

4.01  Friends- The membership of the Centre shall consist of Friends of the Centre. The number of 

Friends of the Centre shall be unlimited. The role of Friends is to support the work of the Centre and to 

attend the Annual or Special General Meetings. 

4.02  Qualifications for Friends: 

a) current students in a diploma or certificate program of the Corporation; 

b) current staff persons of the Corporation; 

c) those appointed by Central Council as a member of a Committee; 

d) graduates of the Diploma Program of the Corporation or one of its predecessors; 

e) graduates of the Western Field Based Diaconal Ministry Program of the United Church 

of Canada; 

f) Companions of the Centre 

g) persons who have donated to the Centre in the two fiscal years prior to the Annual 

Meeting of the Centre; 

h) members of the Central Council; 

i) persons who are admitted as a Friend by the Central Council or by resolution at an 

Annual or Special General Meeting 

Friends may indicate their desire to be involved in the life of the Centre in various ways, and in particular 

by their participation in the Annual or Special General Meetings of the Centre. 
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In Memoriam 

Margaret Boomer Anglican grad 1959 

Geraldine Bould United grad 1956 

Jean Boyd  Anglican grad 1953 

Betty Ann Cade United grad 1959 

Ruth Lang  United grad 1951 

Christopher Lind Friend of CCS 

Louise Pritchard United grad 1954 

Mary Pyne  United grad 1950 

Edith Shore Anglican grad 1958, 

Companion of the 

Centre 2005 

Nellie Spicer  United grad 2000 

 

 

APPENDIX B – Minutes of the 2014 AGM 

Annual General Meeting of the Friends of CCS 

February 20, 2014 

Minutes 
The meeting began at 6:05 pm CST. 

Jim Boyles chaired the first part of the meeting.  

1. Opening 

1.1. Welcome and attendance: 

1.1.1. Staff: Maylanne Maybee (ACC), Ann Naylor (UCC), Scott Douglas (UCC), Ted Dodd (UCC), Lori 

Stewart (UCC) 

1.1.2. Central Council: Patty Evans (UCC), Carolynne Bouey Shank (UCC), Jim Boyles (ACC), Dorothy 

Naylor (UCC), Tim Sale (ACC), Vicki McPhee (UCC), Walter Deller (ACC), Kimiko Karpoff 

(UCC), Jackie van’t Voort (UCC), Paul Hagerman (UCC), Frank Tyrell (ACC) 

1.1.3. Others: Marcie Gibson (UCC), Garth Mundle (UCC), Dave Robinson (ACC), Beth Baskin (ACC), 

Charlotte Caron (UCC), Jamie Bradshaw (UCC), Lynda Gow (UCC), Betty Marlin (UCC), Anne 

Telford (UCC), Alice Hanson (UCC), Morgan Ryder (UCC), Maureen McCartney (UCC), Norah 

McMurtry (UCC), Ken Phernambucq (UCC), Terry Reilly (ACC), Doug Martindale (UCC), Liz 

Bachman (UCC), Chris Tott (ACC), Laurel Richardson (UCC), Sue Taylor (UCC) 
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1.1.4. Regrets: Helen Reed (UCC), Sally Meyer (UCC), Gwyn Griffith (UCC), Mark Laird (UCC).   

1.2. Worship: Dave Robinson and Beth Baskin 

1.3. Acceptance of Friends: 

MOTION: Moved by Carolynne Bouey Shank, Seconded by Betty Marlin, that all those present, 

not already a Friend of the Centre for Christian Studies (member of Council or committee, 

current student, current staff, graduate, donated in past two years, graduate of the Western 

Field-Based Program for Diaconal Ministry), be made a Friend of the Centre. 

CARRIED 

1.4. Agenda Review 

1.5. Approval of Minutes of AGM March 7, 2013 

MOTION: Moved by Ken DeLisle, Seconded by Dave Robinson, that the minutes of the Annual 

Meeting of March 7, 2013 be approved with the following amendments: 

1.5.1. Spelling correction of the following names in attendance: Ken DeLisle (UCC), Lori Stewart 

(UCC) & Gwyn Griffith (UCC) 

CARRIED 

1.6. Business arising from the minutes: None 

2. Reports: 

2.1. Business from Annual Report 

2.1.1. Sharing of Highlights 

2.1.1.1. Co-Chairs: Carolynne Bouey Shank and Jim Boyles 

2.1.1.2. Principal: Maylanne Maybee 

2.1.1.3. Staff: 

2.1.1.4. Students: Jackie van’t Voort 

2.2. Committee Reports Received for Information 

2.2.1. Discussion 

2.2.1.1. There was recognition of francophone concerns in the programming of The Centre 

For Christian Studies. Currently CCS does not make any accommodation for French 

speaking students. There will be many areas of impact should policy change in this 

regard. The Program and Planning and Governance Committees will be exploring this 

matter going forward. 

2.2.2. MOTION: Moved by Frank Tyrell, Seconded by Tim Sale, that the reports contained in the 

Annual Report be received. 

CARRIED 

2.3. Financial Report: Tim Sale 

2.3.1. MOTION: Moved by Tim Sale, Seconded by Ken Phernambucq, that the audited financial 

statements for 2013 be approved. 

CARRIED 
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2.3.2. MOTION: Moved by Tim Sale, Seconded by Jamie Bradshaw, that the decision of the 

Central Council to appoint the Osborne Group as auditors for the three years 2013, 2014 

and 2015 be ratified. 

CARRIED 

2.3.3. MOTION: Moved by Tim Sale, Seconded by Jamie Bradshaw, that the budget for January 

to December 2014 be received for information. 

CARRIED 

2.3.4. MOTION: Moved by Tim Sale, Seconded Charlotte Caron, that the current signing officers 

will remain in effect until replaced by Central Council. 

CARRIED 

Carolynne Bouey Shank took over as Chair 

2.4. Nominations Report: Ted Dodd 

2.4.1. MOTION: Moved by Ted Dodd, seconded by Ken Phernambucq that nominations for 

Central Council for the 2014 year be closed. 

CARRIED 

2.4.2. MOTION: Moved by Ted Dodd, seconded by Patty Evans that the slate of nominees for 

Central Council be approved pending the approval of The Anglican Church of Canada and 

The United Church of Canada for the Anglican and United Church representatives. 

CARRIED 

2.4.3. MOTION: Moved by Ted Dodd, seconded by Jim Boyles that the slate of nominees for 

Committees and Working Groups be approved. 

3. Presentation and Discussion of Mission and Values Statements: Patty Evans 

3.1. Background to new Mission and Values Statements being crafted.  

3.2. New statements are clear, precise and complete. A formal but inviting understanding of CCS. 

3.3. MOTION: moved by Patty Evans, Seconded by Tim Sale that the CCS Mission Statement and 

Core Values, December 2013 be adopted. 

CARRIED 

4. Presentation and Discussion of Centre’s Strategic Plan (Executive Summary): Maylanne Maybee 

4.1. The Centre’s strategic plan is positioning itself in the best way possible for an uncertain future. 

4.2. Caution was urged at accessing the Endowment with considering potential negative 

consequences. It was also acknowledged that the Centre ought not to shy away from risk. 

4.3.  

5. Amendment to By-Laws: Jim Boyles and Terry Reilly 

5.1. Simplified and modernized, making them accessible. 

5.2. MOTION: Moved Jim Boyles, Seconded by Terry Reilly, that By-Law #1 of the Centre for 

Christian Studies, be repealed and replaced by the By-Law presented to this meeting, noting 
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that the necessary approvals by the Anglican and United Churches have been received. 

CARRIED 

6. New Business: None 

7. Thank you to staff, principal and volunteers. 

8. Memoriam: As listed in the Annual Report 

9. Closing and Adjournment at 7:50 pm CST 

 

Recording Secretary: Vicki McPhee 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Centre for Christian Studies Canada Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Centre for Christian Studies Canada Inc.,
which comprise the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from  material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Centre for Christian Studies Canada Inc. as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations.

______________________________
Winnipeg, Manitoba Osborne Accounting Group LLP
February 26, 2015  Certified General Accountants

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM
1
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Statement of Financial Position

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating Endowment Total Bursary 2014 2013

Fund Fund unrestricted Fund Total Total

ASSETS

CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents $ 154,764 $ - $ 154,764 $ 28,998 $ 183,762 $ 193,203
Accounts receivable 4,006 - 4,006 - 4,006 4,666
Investments (Note 3) - 2,263,145 2,263,145 749,236 3,012,381 2,795,567
Prepaid expenses 796 - 796 - 796 -

159,566 2,263,145 2,422,711 778,234 3,200,945 2,993,436
CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE

INSURANCE (Note 4) - 12,122 12,122 - 12,122 10,834
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

 (Note 5) 83,813 - 83,813 - 83,813 89,477

$ 243,379 $ 2,275,267 $ 2,518,646 $ 778,234 $ 3,296,880 $ 3,093,747

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 11,546 $ - $ 11,546 $ - $ 11,546 $ 8,654

Tuition received in advance
 (Note 6) - - - - - 10,200

11,546 - 11,546 - 11,546 18,854

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS (Note 7)
Expenses of future periods 13,533 - 13,533 - 13,533 15,533
Grants received in advance 10,000 - 10,000 16,000 26,000 21,000

23,533 - 23,533 16,000 39,533 36,533
FUND BALANCES

Restricted - - - 762,234 762,234 770,952
Unrestricted 208,300 2,275,267 2,483,567 - 2,483,567 2,267,408

208,300 2,275,267 2,483,567 762,234 3,245,801 3,038,360

$ 243,379 $ 2,275,267 $ 2,518,646 $ 778,234 $ 3,296,880 $ 3,093,747

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
See notes to financial statements
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating Endowment Total Bursary 2014 2013

Fund Fund unrestricted Fund Total Total

REVENUE
Operating (Schedule 1) $ 197,862 $ - $ 197,862 $ - $ 197,862 $ 209,844
Programming (Schedule 2) 142,983 - 142,983 - 142,983 132,785
Contributions and other aid - United

Church of Canada - - - 21,000 21,000 30,390
Increase in value of life insurance

policy - 1,288 1,288 - 1,288 -
Donations 80,677 35,839 116,516 400 116,916 99,505
Investment income - 44,660 44,660 55,219 99,879 48,723
Increase in value of investments - 178,436 178,436 19,682 198,118 176,011

421,522 260,223 681,745 96,301 778,046 697,258

EXPENSES
Amortization 6,158 - 6,158 - 6,158 7,388
Bursaries - - - 53,100 53,100 47,606
Life insurance - - - - - 913
Management fees - 14,824 14,824 6,261 21,085 17,618
Operating (Schedule 1) 236,106 - 236,106 - 236,106 260,385
Programming (Schedule 2) 237,504 - 237,504 - 237,504 229,816
Governance (Schedule 3) 16,652 - 16,652 - 16,652 19,935

496,420 14,824 511,244 59,361 570,605 583,661

$ (74,898) $ 245,399 $ 170,501 $ 36,940 $ 207,441 $ 113,597

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
See notes to financial statements
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating Endowment Total Bursary 2014 2013

Fund Fund unrestricted Fund Total Total

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF
YEAR $ 172,681 $ 2,094,727 $ 2,267,408 $ 770,952 $ 3,038,360 $ 2,924,763
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over

expenses (74,898) 245,399 170,501 36,940 207,441 113,597
Transfer to (from) funds 110,517 (64,859) 45,658 (45,658) - -

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 208,300 $ 2,275,267 $ 2,483,567 $ 762,234 $ 3,245,801 $ 3,038,360

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
See notes to financial statements

4
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014 2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of  over expenses $ 207,441 $ 113,597
Items not affecting cash:

Change in CSV of life insurance policy (1,288) (1,020)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 6,157 7,388
Change in fair value of investments (216,814) (79,362)

(4,504) 40,603

Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable 660 1,338
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,892 3,329
Tuition received in advance (10,200) 4,780
Prepaid expenses (796) -

(7,444) 9,447

Cash flow from operating activities (11,948) 50,050

INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of tangible capital assets (493) -

Cash flow from (used by) investing activity (493) -

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deferred contribution related to expenses of future periods (2,000) (20,344)
Deferred contribution related to grants received in advance 5,000 (9,390)

Cash flow from financing activities 3,000 (29,734)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW (9,441) 20,316

Cash - beginning of year 193,203 172,887

CASH - END OF YEAR $ 183,762 $ 193,203

CASH CONSISTS OF:
Cash $ 181,664 $ 191,166
Cash equivalents 2,098 2,037

$ 183,762 $ 193,203

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
See notes to financial statements
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2014

1. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION  

Centre for Christian Studies Canada Inc. ("CCS") was established as a result of the amalgamation of
The Anglican Women’s Training College and Covenant College in 1969 and from thereon operated
under the name Centre for Christian Studies. The application for letters patent of amalgamation was
filed May 29, 1991 and became official November 26, 1991. CCS was incorporated under the
Manitoba Corporations Act, without share capital, on August 4, 1998 with the name being officially
changed to Centre for Christian Studies Canada Inc. CCS however, still operates under the name
Centre for Christian Studies. 

CCS is a registered charitable organization under the Income Tax Act, and, accordingly, is exempt
from income taxes providing certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met.  CCS operates a
theological education centre and offers a four year diploma in Diaconal Ministries; Studies in
Transformation and Action. Upon completion the diploma students may be commissioned in The
United Church of Canada. In March of each fiscal year, students are invited to apply for bursaries and
they are awarded to them based on need and previous awarded bursaries.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES        

Basis of presentation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations  (ASNFPO).

Fund accounting

Operating Fund (unrestricted):

The organization accounts for the general revenues and expenditures such as general donations,
rental income and contributions from The United Church of Canada in the Operating Fund.

Endowment Fund (unrestricted):

The Endowment Fund was established to sustain the operations of CCS. The investment income
earned on the investments is intended to support the annual operation of CCS and its programs.

Bursary Fund (restricted):

The Bursary Fund is maintained for specific purposes including awards to students in financial need.
The funds are disbursed at the discretion of the Bursary Working Group.  The Bursary Fund is
designated into three categories as illustrated in note 8.

Revenue recognition

Centre for Christian Studies Canada Inc. follows the restricted fund method of accounting for
contributions.

Restricted contributions related to the Operating Fund and the Endowment Fund are recognized as
revenue in the appropriate fund in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. All other
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate restricted fund.

(continues)

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
6
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments   

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Freestanding derivative
instruments that are not in a qualifying hedging relationship and equity instruments that are quoted in
an active market are subsequently measured at fair value. All other financial instruments are
subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has elected to carry the
instruments at fair value. CCS has not elected to carry any such financial instruments at fair value.

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently at fair
value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs
incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are amortized using the straight-line method.

Tangible capital assets       

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Tangible capital assets are amortized over their
estimated useful lives on a declining balance basis at the following rates:

Building 5%
Equipment and sign 20%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

The CCS regularly reviews its tangible capital assets to eliminate obsolete items. Government grants
are treated as a reduction of tangible capital assets cost.

Tangible capital assets acquired during the year but not placed into use are not amortized until they
are placed into use.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in
the period in which they become known. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
7
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2014

3. INVESTMENTS        

The investments in each fund consist of the following:

2014 2013

Endowment Fund:
Short-term investments $ 8,446 $ 5,236
Common and preferred shares 1,401,376 1,830,120
Fixed income 853,323 226,285
Mutual funds - 21,933

2,263,145 2,083,574

Bursary Fund:
Short-term investments 8,986 3,009
Common and preferred shares 440,131 680,667
Fixed income 300,119 -
Mutual funds - 28,317

749,236 711,993

$ 3,012,381 $ 2,795,567

4. CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE POLICY    

The ownership of two life insurance policies was donated to CCS and recorded as donations in the
years donated. The ongoing premiums paid by the insured are recorded as donation revenue and
insurance premium expense.  

5. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS         
2014 2013

Cost Accumulated Cost Accumulated
amortization amortization

Land $ 25,000 $ - $ 25,000 $ -
Building 104,307 59,740 104,307 57,392
Equipment and sign 38,810 28,169 38,810 25,508
Computer equipment 30,145 27,575 29,652 26,686
Furniture and fixtures 24,614 23,579 24,614 23,320

$ 222,876 $ 139,063 $ 222,383 $ 132,906

Net book value $ 83,813 $ 89,477

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
8
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2014

6. TUITION RECEIVED IN ADVANCE        

Deferred tuition relates to tuition fees received in the current period that is related to courses offered
in the next program year.

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year $ 10,200 $ 5,420
Amounts received during the year - 10,200

Subtotal 10,200 15,620
Less amounts recognized into revenue in the year 10,200 5,420

Balance, end of year $ - $ 10,200

7. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS        

Deferred contributions relate to amounts received in the current year and relate to expenditures to be
incurred in a future year or to grants received in the current year but earned in a future year.

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year $ 36,533 $ 66,267
Amounts received during the year 26,000 21,000

Subtotal 62,533 87,267
Less amounts recognized as revenue during the year 23,000 50,734

Balance, end of year $ 39,533 $ 36,533

8. BURSARY FUND BALANCES    

The Bursary Fund balance is comprised of three components. A portion of the funds has been
designated by certain donors and is permanent. This portion of the Bursary Fund is referred to as the
Permanent Designated Fund. A second portion of the funds has been designated by donors and can
be used to provide bursaries to students. This portion is referred to as the Expendable Designated
Fund. The final remaining category balance is the Non-Designated Fund which represents the
accrued earnings of the fund and is expendable. 

Each bursary fund will be accorded a pro-rata value in the general fund for accounting purposes.  In a
year when a given bursary is partially awarded or not awarded at all, the capital value will increase by
its excess earnings in that year.  Should the Fund’s performance exceed the target income of 5% or
the need for bursaries is less than 5% of the then current value of the Fund, the excess funds shall
be added to the General Bursary Fund.

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
9
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2014

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS    

CCS is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a risk management
framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.  The following analysis provides information
about the CCS's risk exposure and concentration as of December 31, 2014.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to the earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange rates, the
degree of volatility of these rates, and the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be
adversely affected by a change in the foreign exchange rates.  CCS is exposed to foreign currency
exchange risk on investments denominated in foreign currency.  CCS does not use derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk.  As at December 31, 2014, CCS had
investments expressed in Canadian currency, but denominated in US dollars, of $530,536
(December 31, 2013 - $265,875) in the Endowment Fund and $194,314 (December 31, 2013 -
$112,342) in the Bursury Fund.  

10. COMPARATIVE FIGURES    

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

Printed: February 23, 2015 3:55 PM Prep ________  Added ________  Approved _______
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Operating Fund (Schedule 1)

Operating Revenues and Expenditures

Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014 2013

Operating revenue:
Contribution - United Church of Canada $ 110,753 $ 129,558
Bequests 68,161 41,420
Other contributions 8,000 24,344
Rental and other miscellaneous 10,650 14,259
Investment income 298 263

$ 197,862 $ 209,844

Operating expenses:
Administration and office $ 54,720 $ 49,173
Building 16,595 24,237
Promotion and recruitment 12,377 9,877
Salaries and wages 143,826 115,575
Special communications and development 8,588 61,523

$ 236,106 $ 260,385

11
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Operating Fund (Schedule 2)

Program Revenues and Expenditures

Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014 2013

Program revenue:
Tuition $ 138,088 $ 123,180
Other 4,895 9,605

$ 142,983 $ 132,785

Program expenses:
Copyright $ 277 $ 307
Honoraria 1,675 350
Other projects and programs 3,500 2,060
Photocopying, postage and printing 185 185
Rent 4,092 750
Resource 7,621 3,047
Salaries and wages 215,334 212,201
Travel and accommodation 4,820 10,916

$ 237,504 $ 229,816

12
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CENTRE FOR CHRISTIAN STUDIES CANADA INC.

Operating Fund (Schedule 3)

Governance Expenditures

Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014 2013

Annual general meeting $ - $ 13
Annual service of celebration 5,461 3,974
Central council meetings 5,317 10,451
Council projects 3,819 3,775
Finance committee 279 79
Human resources search committee 292 891
Other 1,484 752

$ 16,652 $ 19,935

13
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